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14 January 2005
Dear Sir/Madam,

The Refugee Legal Centre welcomes the consideration by the Constitutional Affairs Committee of the recently published proposals by the DCA
 for the funding of onward asylum and immigration appeals under the new Asylum and Immigration Tribunal. 

We enclose at Appendix 1, for the consideration of the Committee, our detailed briefing response on these funding proposals, dated 13th December 2004. In addition to the concerns raised therein, we would like to make the following further points particularly in light of the Legal Services Commission’s subsequent proposals:

1. We consider that the stringency of the merits test proposed within the funding scheme amounts to a covert no-win, no-fee system, rendering rights of access to the higher courts notional rather than real and effective. We understand that Mr Justice Collins, former President of the Immigration Appeal Tribunal and the most senior judge in the High Court dealing with immigration matters has voiced similar concerns
. 

2. Ministers have repeatedly stated that good advisers will not be affected by these provisions
. That RLC falls to be regarded as such is clear: we have been awarded devolved powers by the LSC (whereby we are one of the few of the immigration contract holders to be able to merits-test and grant funding for appeals cases in-house
; the Home Office has for many years advised asylum-seekers who need representation to contact us; the Immigration Appellate Authority does the same when individual appellants are without representation. Not least, our statistics show that our success rates at appeal at all levels are significantly higher than average. 

3. The “uplift” fee or risk premium will, it is proposed, be 25%. In practice, this will mean that we will have to achieve a huge increase in our success rate to ensure financial viability of this work. An examination of our statistics confirms that, were this scheme to be introduced, this work would no longer be financially viable:

For the period July 2003 to March 2004, 223 applications were made for permission to appeal to the Immigration Appeal Tribunal: 140 of these were granted (63%: roughly double the stated national average); 83 refused (37%: less than half the stated national average).  

However, of those refused leave to appeal, 14  - or 17% - were successfully challenged via statutory review:  thus a more accurate statistic would be that 157 applications were granted (70%) and 66 refused (29.5%).
  
Of the 140 granted permission to appeal; 75 have to date been heard and decided at the Immigration Appeal Tribunal – 13 allowed (17%); 12 dismissed (16%); 50 remitted (67%). 

Of those remitted, it is not possible to state how many in fact were allowed as we cannot track cases throughout the system. However, based on our statistics for success rates at appeal before an Adjudicator, a success rate of 37.5% can be assumed
. 

Thus under the funding system proposed, there is a very real risk that a significant number of cases would not receive (retrospective) funding
:

· the 29.5% of Tribunal applications refused leave to appeal; 

· the 16% of appeals substantively dismissed by the Tribunal;

· of the 67% of cases remitted, the 62.4% likely to be unsuccessful (ie 41.5% of the 

original). 

4. Crudely put, the RLC is twice as good as the average provider and yet stands to lose funding for much of its higher appeals work. We provide at Appendix 2 an illustrative calculation of the impact of these proposals based on simplified statistics, from which the Committee will note that we stand to lose over half our funding for this work (55%), rendering it financially unviable. We consider that the flaw in the scheme lies in its focus on outcome rather than the interests of justice:  for example, in 67% of the cases heard by the Tribunal a remittal was ordered, as errors of sufficient seriousness were identified to warrant the decision being set aside. Yet such cases are unlikely to be awarded funding in the future unless they go on to win, notwithstanding they were unsafe enough to be declared void. Applicants are thus penalized, in effect, for properly challenging the Tribunal’s own initial errors. 
5. We would also draw to the Committee’s attention to the parliamentary debates during the passage of the Bill. These show that Parliament clearly did not wish to see experienced, high-quality advisers rendered financially unviable
. Most important, we do not believe that Parliament intended that the system should fail asylum appellants with real fears of persecution. The proposed process will nevertheless leave such appellants without effective access to the process for reconsidering defective first instance decisions. We wholly concur with the view of Mr Justice Collins that these provisions, if implemented, will amount to an ouster in all but name
.

We look forward to receiving the Committee’s views.

Yours faithfully,

Emma Saunders

Refugee Legal Centre
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� DCA Consultation Paper CP(L) 30/04: The Asylum and Immigration Tribunal – the Legal Aid Arrangements for Onward Appeals.


� According to an article in the Daily Telegraph (23/12/04), Mr Justice Collins considers the suggested merits tests will “present a high or very high risk to the lawyer that ultimate failure would mean no pay”. 


� See paragraphs 9 and 10 of our consultation response


� The great majority of representatives have to apply to the LSC for funding at the appeals stage. The LSC will grant funding on the basis of its assessment of the merits of a case.


� 	Over the same period, the RLC decided that 105 should not be pursued further by way of application to the Immigration Appeal Tribunal for lack of merit: indicating that, of 328 applications we might have brought in the period, 32% were not pursued.  (In fact this latter percentage may well be higher:  a significant number of the applications brought will have been cases taken on at the application stage from previous representatives)


� 	RLC statistics for the same period show an average success rate of 37.5% for Adjudicator appeals. Thus it is reasonably likely that this proportion of cases remitted would have been successful (although this does not take account of the fact that some may have been appealed again, successfully, to the Tribunal).


� 	Although not all applications for leave had been heard at the time of writing, the statistics available have been taken as generally representative of the likely outcome of those cases pending.


� 	“It was made quite clear in the other place that the official Opposition and, indeed, others, would not accept a conditional fee system.”  Dominic Grieve (Beaconsfield) , Hansard 12.7.04 Col 1166


� 	According to the Daily Telegraph article of 23/12/04, Mr Justice Collins considers the funding regime “could be regarded as an attempt to achieve, so far as possible, what the ouster clause was intended to achieve and to place too high a barrier against access to the courts".
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